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No. 460 of 2023

Summary financial statements prepared from the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022

(@) Absa Bank (Seychelles) Limited
\—/

Interest income 355,932 345,655
Cash and balances with central bank 1,824,948 2,378,717 5
Loans and advances to banks 4,107,911 2,647,307 Other interest income 543 418
Investment securities 1,824,861 2,735,893 Interest Income 356475 350,073
Trading portfolio assets 5 50
Other assets 72,293 68,891 Interest expense {37,164) (36,391)
Current tax assets (restated) - 69,457 3 i
Loans and advances to customers 2,698,848 2,637,595 Net interest income 319311 313,682
Retirement henefit asset 9,054
Property and equipment 175,891 Fee and commission income 130,203 93,747
Intangible assets 4,990 Fee and commission expense (29,6500 123,002)
Deferred tax assets f&ialo, Net fee and commission income 100,553 70,745
Total assets (restated) 10,791,477 10,782,745 Al irsding income e 102,843
Other {expenses)/income 16,386) 291
i e
bilities
Trading portfolio liabilities 34 50 Reversal of expected credit losses 43,125 48,189
Other liabi 5 118,60% 113,992 Net Qperating income 591,297 536,750
Current tax liabilities 21,984 302
Depasits from customers 9,825,406 9,877,106 Staff costs (135,147) (112,080
Borrowed funds 96,393 102,330
Sinuiaians 41135 45528 lnfmlstﬂ ﬂ“." costs 77,394) 73,599
Ad tion and general exp 179,547) (209,166)
Total liabilities 10,103,561 10,139,308 Operating expenses (392,088) (394,855)
Profit before tax 199,209 141,895
Exuity
Share eapital 35,000 35,000 Taxation (restated) 167,268) (42,691)
Reserves (rastated) 652,916 608,437 Profit for the year (restated) 131,941 99,204
Total equity 687,916 643,437 Dthier cednpnthensive incoene:
Items that will or may not be reclassifed subsequently to profit or loss:
Total liabilities and equity 10,791,477 10,782,745 Retirement benefit remeasurements 762 (142)
Total ather camprehensive income/(lass) for the year, net of tax 762 (142)
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (restated) 132,703 99,062

Balance a1 1 January 2021 35 000 9457 4391 462 595 35 000 (2 407) 544036
Profit for the year (restated) - - 99 204 - - 599 204
Other comprehensive loss for the year, (restated) - - - = - (142) (142)
Total comprehensive income for the year, (restated) - - - 99 204 - (142) 95 062
Expense in respect of share-based payments - - 339 - - - 33s
Balance at 31 December 2021, (restated) 35 000 9 457 4730 561 79% 5 000 (2 549) 643 437
Balance at 1 January 2022, {restated) 35 000 9457 4730 561 799 35 000 (2 549) 643437
Profit for the year - - - 131941 - 131941
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - - 762 762
Total comprehensive income far the year - - - 131941 762 132 703

Dividend paid during the year - - - (88 796) - = (88 796)
Released of general hanking reserve - (9 457) - 9 457 - = -

Expense in respect of share-based payments - 572 - - - 572
Balance at 31 December 2022 35000 - 5302 614 401 35 000 (1787) 687916
The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 April 2023 and signed on its behalf by =

Marc Yves Houareau Mian Nazim Mahmood Akhtar Mohammad Mamode Veronique Laporte Rod Thorrington Michael Charles King=Harman Alain Chang-5am
(Director) (Direetor) (Directar) (Director) (Directar) (Director) (Director)

Approval of financial statements

The audited financial statements have been approved by the Board and abridged for purposes of this report. KPMG has expressed an unmodified audit opinion on the annual financial statements. The signed auditors’
report 15 available for viewing at Absa's Seychelles [www.absa.sc). The audited financial statements are available for inspection at the Bank's registered address. This abrideed report is extracted from audited
information but is itself not audited. The auditors' report does not necessarily cover all of the information contained in this announcement. Stakeholders are therefore advised that in order to obtain a full understanding
of the nature auditors' work they should view together with the accompanying financial information.
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No. 461 0f 2023

Tel: +248 4 412 512

Fax: 248 4 412 300

Email: bdoseycheiles@bdo.sc
R S ST [T

SEYCHELLES COMMERCIAL BANK LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
Report on the audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of SEYCHELLES COMMERCIAL BANK LIMITED (hereafter
referred to as “the Bank") set out on pages 4 to 62 which comprise the Statement of Financial Position
as at December 31, 2022, the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, Statement
of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Bank as
at December 31, 2022 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and comply with the Seychelles Companies
Act, 1972, the Financial Institutions Act, 2004 as amended and Regulations and Directives of the Central
Bank of Seychelles.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our

responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Bank in accordance
with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional

Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in Seychelles, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the IESBA Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters,

Key audit matter

Adequacy for the provision for expected credit losses (ECL) per IFRS 9

Refer to Note 6(b) & 6(d) of the financial statements.

The determination of the allowance for expected credit losses (‘ECL') is highly subjective. The

subjectivity relates to the path to recovery from COVID-19, the impact of the Russian Ukraine War as
well as the impacts of climate change.
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SEYCHELLES COMMERCIAL BANK LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS (CONT'D)
Key Audit Matters (Cont'd)
Adequacy for the provision for expected credit losses (ECL) per IFRS 9 (Cont’d)

Given the subjective nature of the calculation of ECL, there is a heightened risk that the provisions
could be misstated.

We focused on the following:

Staging/assessment of significant increase in credit risk: Allocation of assets recognised in stages 1, 2
and 3, including the trigger for assets moving between stages;

ECL models: The assumptions used in the models to calculate ECL, including the accounting
interpretations, modelling assumptions and data used in the Probability of Default (‘PD’), Loss Given
Default (‘LGD’) and Exposure at Default (‘EAD') models; and

Model adjustments: Adequacy and completeness of model adjustments, including those in relation to
the effect of COVID-19 and macro economic factors such as GDP, inflation, etc.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Staging/assessment of significant increase in credit risk
We assessed the design and tested the operating effectiveness of key controls on the following:

- assessment and approval of significant increase or reduction in credit risk and monitoring of asset in

each stage;

« assessment of manual overrides to staging outcomes; and

» data accuracy and completeness.
On a sample basis, we analysed the assets in stages 1, 2 and 3 to assess if they were allocated to the
appropriate stage and performed sensitivity analysis to assess the impact of different criteria on the
ECL.

ECL models

We assessed the design and tested the operating effectiveness of key controls, focusing on model
governance, including the design, build, testing, review, and approval of relevant models. As part of
this we assessed the accounting interpretations made for compliance with IFRS 9.

Model adjustments

Checked the reasonableness of the Bank’s considerations, the impact on ECL of the war in Ukraine,
remaining effect of the COVID-19 pandemic, as well as the economic impact of the rising cost of living
on the ECL. Sample tested key inputs to assess reasonableness of forecasts.

Overall stand-back assessment - adequacy of ECL

We performed a stand-back assessment of the ECL provisions and coverage at an overall level and by
stage to determine if provision levels were reasonable by considering the overall credit quality of the
Bank’s portfolios, risk profile, and the remaining impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic, other impacts like
Russia-Ukraine war and climate changes.

Disclosures

Assessed whether disclosures with respect to ECL appropriately addressed the uncertainties which exist
when determining the ECL and in addition, assessed whether the disclosures of key judgements and
assumptions made were adequate in the circumstances.
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SEYCHELLES COMMERCIAL BANK LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS (CONT'D)
Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and in compliance with the Companies Act,
1972, the Financial Institutions Act 2004, as amended and the Regulations and Directives of the Central
Bank of Seychelles, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Bank's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Bank or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Bank’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with [SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control,

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by Directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue
as a going concern.
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SEYCHELLES COMMERCIAL BANK LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS (CONT'D)
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Cont'd)

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Seychelles Companies Act, 1972

We have no relationship with, or interests in, the Bank, other than in our capacity as auditors and
dealings in the ordinary course of business.

We have obtained all information and explanations we have required.

In our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept by the Bank as far as it appears from our
examination of those records.

Financial Institutions Act 2004, as amended and Regulations and Directives of the Central Bank of
Seychelles

The Financial Institutions Act 2004, as amended and Regulations and Directives of the Central Bank of
Seychelles requires that in carrying out our audit, we consider and report to you the following matters.
We confirm that:
In our opinion, the financial statements have been prepared on a basis consistent with that of the
preceding year and are complete, fair and properly drawn up and comply with the Financial
Institutions Act 2004, as amended and Regulations and Directives of the Central Bank of Seychelles.
The explanations or information called for or given to us by management and employees of the Bank
were satisfactory.
The Bank did not carry out any fiduciary duties during the year under review.

Epo Bssec lalkes

BDO ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Dated: 7 1 APR 2623

Victoria, Seychelles
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SEYCHELLES COMMERCIAL BANK LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2022

Notes 2022 2021

ASSETS SR SR
Cash and cash equivalents 5 820,482,440 680,246,657
Loans and advances 6 772,903,448 698,275,192
Investment in financial assets at amortised cost 7 576,659,549 556,397,549
Right-of-use assets 8(b) 3,440,327 1,433,597
Intangible assets 9 12,031,387 8,973,004
Property and equipment 10 61,516,959 63,142,217
Other assets 1 14,994,827 28,507,602
Deferred tax asset 12(b) 9,485,240 9,234,948
Current tax asset 16(a) 1,100,123 -
Total assets 2,272,614,300 2,046,210,766
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Deposits from customers 13 2,001,057,075 1,794,780,642
Retirement benefit obligations 14 10,540,465 10,414,618
Lease liabilities 8(c) 3,507,996 1,503,180
Borrowings 15 5,781,344 6,936,131
Current tax liability 16(a) - 1,299,551
Other liabilities 17 28,781,783 18,622,312
Dividends payable 29 5,400,000
Total liabilities " 2,055,068,663 1,833,556,434
EQUITY
Share capital 18 60,000,000 60,000,000
Statutory reserve 19 39,837,575 36,819,314
Revaluation reserve Page 6 39,990,829 39,990,829
Retained earnings 77,717,233 75,844,189
Total equity 217,545,637 212,654,332
Total liabilities and equity 2,272,614,300 2,046,210,766
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Loan commitments 27(b) 77,771,000 45,357,000

al statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 71 APR 72073

- %6

LUl

Mr.J

Mr. Robert ohgan

Director

Director

Mrs. Annie Vidot
Managing Dirgctor

Director

Mrs. Esther Boniface
Director

Mrs. Jenna Thelermont
Director
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SEYCHELLES COMMERCIAL BANK LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS & OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2022
Notes 2022 2021

SR SR
Interest income 20 128,895,027 128,199,807
Interest expense 21 (26,420,574) (36,582,171)
Net interest income 102,474,453 91,617,636
Fee and commission income 22 17,523,446 15,686,797
Net interest, fee and commission income 119,997,899 107,304,433
Net foreign exchange loss (2,115,393) (15,534,063)
Sundry income 23 300,486 196,383
Operating income 118,182,992 91,966,753
Ermployee benefit expense 24 (35,234,116) (29,449,323)
Arnortisation of right-of-use assets 8(b) (2,721,365) (2,784,237)
Amortisation of intangible assets 9 (2,145,875) (2,101,602)
Depreciation of property and equipment 10 (4,510,574) (4,081,264}
Other operating expenses 25 (46,819,278) (38,996,026)
Totai operating expenses {91,431,208) (77,412,452)
Operating profit before impairment 26,751,784 14,554,301
Auowance for credit impairment 6(c) (1,219,552) 2,811,562
Profit before taxation 25,532,232 17,365,863
Tax charge 16(b) (10,440,927) (9,341,737)
Profit and Total Comprehensive Income for the year 15,091,305 8,024,126




285

No. 462 of 2023
BDO
Email: bdoseychal Jictoria, Mahe

THE MAURITIUS COMMERCIAL BANK (SEYCHELLES) LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

Report on the audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of THE MAURITIUS COMMERCIAL BANK (SEYCHELLES)
LIMITED (hereafter referred to as "the Bank") set out on pages 4 to 58 which comprise the
Statement of Financial Position as at December 31, 2022, the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the
year then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accaunting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements on pages 4 to 58 give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Bank as at December 31, 2022 and of its financial performance and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and comply
with the Seychelles Companies Act, 1972.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Bank in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements in Seychelles, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter
Adequacy for the provision for expected credit losses (ECL) per IFRS 9

At December 31, 2022, the Bank reported total Expected Credit Loss [ECL] of SCR 87.9m out of
which SCR 80.3m was in respect of drawn loans and advances which represent an ECL cover ratio of
2.51% (2021: SCR 65.6m & ECL Cover of 2.13%).

The determination of ECL consists of a number of assumptions that require a high degree of
complex and subjective auditor judgement, specialised skills and knowledge, complex impairment
modelling and a high degree of estimation uncertainty.
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THE MAURITIUS COMMERCIAL BANK (SEYCHELLES) LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS (CONT'D)
Key Audit Matters (Cont'd)

Adequacy for the provision for expected credit losses (ECL) per IFRS 9

Specifically, the impact of the war in Ukraine, residual economic impact of the COVID-19 pandemic,
as well as the economic impact of the rising cost of living on the ECL have been particularly
judgemental given the inherent uncertainty in the current economic environment.

The key areas we identified as having the most significant level of management judgement
were in respect of:

- Staging - the determination of significant increase in credit risk and resultant timely allocation
of assets to the appropriate stage in accordance with IFRS 9;

« Model estimations - Determination of Probabilities of Default (“PD"), Loss Given Default (“LGD")
and Exposures at Default (“EAD"); and

« Forward-looking information - Macroeconomic forecasts, including GDP, unemployment
(national and regional), inflation, interest rates and The borrowers’ probability of non-payment
in response to macroeconomic factors.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

» Evaluated the appropriateness of the Bank’s IFRS 9 impairment methodologies;

+ Reperformed and inspected model code for the calculation of certain components of the ECL
model (including the staging criteria);

» Evaluated whether the changes were appropriate by assessing the updated IFRS 9 model
methodology;

« Checked the reasonableness of the Bank's considerations on the ECL the impact of the war in
Ukraine, residual economic impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, as well as the economic impact of
the rising cost of living on the ECL;

» Sample-tested key inputs, data and assumptions impacting ECL calculations to assess the
reasonableness of economic forecasts, weights, and model assumptions applied; and

« We assessed whether the disclosures were appropriate addressed the uncertainties which existed

when determining the ECL including sensitivity analysis done. In addition, we assessed whether
the disclosure of the key judgements and assumptions made was sufficiently clear.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and in compliance with the
Companies Act, 1972, the Financial Institutions Act 2004, as amended and the Regulations and
Directives of the Central Bank of Seychelles, and for such internal control as the Directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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THE MAURITIUS COMMERCIAL BANK (SEYCHELLES) LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS (CONT'D)

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
(Cont'd)

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Bank's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Bank
or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Bank’s financial reporting
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with I1SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by Directors.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank'’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Bank to
cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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THE MAURITIUS COMMERCIAL BANK (SEYCHELLES) LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS (CONT'D)
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Cont'd)

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Seychelles Companies Act, 1972

We have no relationship with, or interests in, the Bank, other than in our capacity as auditors and
dealings in the ordinary course of business.

We have obtained all information and explanations we have required.

In our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept by the Bank as far as it appears from our
examination of those records.

Financial Institutions Act 2004, as amended and Regulations and Directives of the Central
Bank of Seychelles

The Financial Institutions Act 2004, as amended and Regulations and Directives of the Central Bank
of Seychelles requires that in carrying out our audit, we consider and report to you the following
matters. We confirm that:

- In our opinion, the financial statements have been prepared on a basis consistent with that of
the preceding year and are complete, fair and properly drawn up and comply with the Financial
Institutions Act 2004, as amended and Regulations and Directives of the Central Bank of
Seychelles.

- The explanations or information called for or given to us by management and employees of the
Bank were satisfactory.

- The Bank did not carry out any fiduciary duties during the year under review.

Other Matter

This report is made solely to the members of THE MAURITIUS COMMERCIAL BANK (SEYCHELLES)
LIMITED as a body, in terms of our engagement to conduct the audit on their behalf. Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Bank's members those matters which we
are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Bank or the
Bank's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

BOD Pss oy afts
. BDO ASSOCIATES
Dated: 24 APR 2623 Chartered Accountants
Victoria, Seychelles
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THE MAURITIUS COMMERCIAL BANK (SEYCHELLES) LIMITED 4

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2022

Notes 2022 2021

SR SR
ASSETS
Cash and bank balances 5 1,675,010,982 2,062,377,113
Loans and advances 6 3,116,354,296 3,018,912,139
Investment in financial assets 7 1,952,733,635 1,749,056,846
Right-of-use assets 8(b) 115,190,871 118,293,571
Property and equipment 9 98,072,883 111,166,087
Intangible assets 10 7,702,654 12,061,988
Deferred tax assets 11(b) 51,179,303 46,690,407
Other assets 12 69,143,676 53,529,998
Total Assets 7,085,388,300 7,172,088,149
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Deposits from banks and customers 13 6,022,347,766 6,025,989,504
Borrowings 14 97,220,879 255,291,141
Retirement benefit obligations 15 13,154,786 13,321,634
Current tax liabilities 16(a) 25,661,546 7,119,582
Other liabilities 17 207,999,849 217,035,314
Total Liabilities 6,366,384,826 6,518,757,175
EQUITY
Share capital 18 20,000,000 20,000,000
Statutory reserve 19 20,000,000 20,000,000
Other reserves 39,420,161 42,566,100
Retained earnings 639,583,313 570,764,874
Total Equity 719,003,474 653,330,974
Total Liabilities and Equity 7,085,388,300 7,172,088,149
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Acceptances, letters of credit and guarantees 361,168,789 314,620,444
Loan commitments 29(d) 91,837,416 340,188,328
Unutilised cards and overdraft commitments 29(d) 180,787,305 190,223,905

633,793,510 845,032,677

These financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on: 7 & APR 2073

\M/()

v\ N/ \
Bernard Jackson Jean Michel Ng Tseung
Director Direct/q/

Sl

Pierre-Guy \Noel
Director
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""" Jean-Francois Desvaux de Marigny

Gilbert Gnany
Director

Director
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THE MAURITIUS COMMERCIAL BANK (SEYCHELLES) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER

31, 2022

Notes 2022 2021

SR SR

Interest income 20 278,195,923 274,858,244
Interest expense 21 (48,440,148) {53,271,005)
Net interest income 229,755,775 221,587,239
Fee and commission income 22 142,694,032 120,663,328
Fee and commission expense 23 (91,834,392) (81,740,900}
Net fee and commission income 50,859,640 38,922,428
Other income
Profit arising from dealing in foreign currencies 112,114,451 41,054,444
Other operating income 24 399,285 21,144
Total operating income 112,513,736 41,075,588
Net operating income 393,129,151 301,585,255
Non-interest expenses
Depreciation of right-of-use 8(b) (6,769,519) (6,159,599)
Depreciation of property and equipment 9 (15,564,816} (13,271,215)
Amortisation of intangibles 10 (4,359,334) (6,945,490)
Staff costs 25 (67,087,228) (54,422,142)
Other operating expenses 26 (74,668,520) (68,234,358)
Total operating expenses (168,449,417) (149,032,804)
Operating profit before impairment 224,679,734 152,552,451
Expected credit loss expense 27 (11,771,463) (4,687,146)
Profit before taxation 212,908,271 147,865,305
Taxation 16(b) (74,089,834) (50,942,068)
Profit for the year 138,818,437 96,923,237

Other Comprehensive Income

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to the Statement of Profit or Loss:

Net change in fair value of financial assets at FYTOCI and Total
Other Comprehensive (Expense)/Income for the year 7(a)(ii) (3,145,939)

(19,848,020)

Total comprehensive income for the year 135,672,498

77,075,217

PUBLISHED UNDER THE DIGITIZATION AND PUBLICATION OF GAZETTE ACT
www.gazette.sc
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S.1. 31 of 2023
VALUE ADDED TAX ACT
(Cap 244)
Value Added Tax (Amendment of the First Schedule) Regulations, 2023

In the exercise of the powers conferred by Section 52 (1) of the Value
Added Tax Act, 2010, the Minister responsible for finance makes the
following regulations —

Citation

1. These Regulations may be cited as the Value Added Tax
(Amendment of the First Schedule) Regulations, 2023.

Amendment of the First Schedule as last amended by S.I 71 of 2021

2. The First Schedule to the Value Added Tax Act is amended by
repealing in PART III, IMPORTED OR LOCALLY PRODUCED GOODS,
all HS Codes and entries related thereto and substituting therefor the
following —

HS CODES DESCRIPTION
Meat of bovine animals, fresh or chilled

0201.1000 Carcasses and half carcasses
0201.2000 Other fresh cuts with bone in
0201.3000 Boneless

Meat of bovine animals, frozen
0202.1000 Carcasses and half carcasses
0202.2000 Other cuts with bone in
0202.3000 Boneless

Meat of swine, fresh, chilled or frozen
Fresh or chilled

0203.1100 Carcasses and half carcasses

0203.1200 Hams, shoulders and cuts thereof, with bone in
0203.1900 Other




[28th April 2023] Value Added Tax 141

REPUBLIC OF SEYCHELLES SUPPLEMENT TO OFFICIAL GAZETTE SI
Frozen:
0203.2100 Carcasses and half carcasses
0203.2200 Ham, shoulders and cuts thereof of swine, with bone in.
0203.2900 Other
Meat of sheep or goats, fresh, chilled or frozen
0204.1000 Carcasses and half carcasses of lamb, fresh or chilled
Other meat of sheep, fresh or chilled:
0204.2100 Carcasses and half carcasses
0204.2200 Other cuts with bone in
0204.2300 Boneless
0204.3000 Carcasses and half carcasses of lamb, frozen
Other meat of sheep, frozen:
0204.4100 Carcasses and half carcasses
0204.4200 Other cuts with bone in
0204.4300 Boneless
0204.5000 Meat of goats
Edible offal of bovine animals, swine, sheep, goats, horses,
asses, mules, or
hinnies, fresh, chilled or frozen
0206.1000 Meat of bovine animals, fresh or chilled
Of bovine animals, frozen:
0206.2200 Livers
0206.2900 Other
0206.3000 Of swine, fresh or chilled
Of swine, frozen:
0206.4100 Livers.
0206.4900 Other
Of swine, frozen:
0206. 8000 Other, fresh or chilled

0206. 9000

Other frozen




[28th April 2023] Value Added Tax 142

REPUBLIC OF SEYCHELLES SUPPLEMENT TO OFFICIAL GAZETTE SI

Meat and edible offal, of the poultry of heading 01.05,
fresh, chilled or
frozen

Of fowls of the species Gallus domesticus

0207.1100 Not cut in pieces, fresh or chilled
0207.1200 Not cut in pieces, frozen
0207.1300 Cuts and offal (including livers) fresh or chilled

Cuts and offal, frozen:
0207.1410 Mechanically de boned poultry meat
0207.1490 Other

Of turkeys:
0207.2400 Not cuts in pieces, fresh or chilled
0207.2500 Not cuts in pieces, frozen
0207.2600 Cuts and offal, fresh or chilled
0207.2700 Cuts and offal, frozen

Of ducks:
0207.4100 Not cut in pieces, fresh or chilled
0207.4200 Not cut in pieces, frozen
0207.4300 Fatty livers, fresh or chilled
0207.4400 Other, fresh or chilled
0207.4500 Other, frozen

Of geese:
0207.5100 Not cut in pieces, fresh or chilled
0207.5200 Not cut in pieces, frozen
0207.5300 Not cut in pieces, fresh or chilled
0207.5400 Fatty livers, fresh or chilled
0207.5500 Other, frozen
0207.6000 Of guinea fowls
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Other meat and edible meat offal, fresh, chilled or frozen

0208.1000 Of rabbits or hares

0208.9000 Other
Pig fat, free of lean meat, and poultry fat, not rendered or
otherwise extracted, fresh, chilled, frozen, salted, in brine,
dried or smoked

0209.1000 Of pigs

0209.9000 Other
Meat and edible meat offal ,salted, in brine, dried or
smoked; edible flours and meals of meat or meat offal
Meat of swine

0210.1100 Hams, shoulders and cuts thereof, of swine with bone in

0210.1200 Bellies(streaky) and cuts thereof

0210.1900 Other

0210.2000 Meat of bovine animals
Other, including edible flours & meals of meat or meat
offal

0210.9100 Of primates

0210.9900 Other
Fish, fresh or chilled, excluding fish fillets and other fish
meat of heading 03.04

0302.1100 Trout (salmo trutta, oncorhynchus mykiss, oncorhynchus
clarki, oncorhynchus aguabonita, oncorhynchus gilae,
oncorhynchusapachea and oncorhynchus chrysogaster

0302.1300 Pacific salmon, (Oncorhynchusnerka nerka, oncorhynchus
gorbuscha, oncorhynchus keta, oncorhynchus schawytscha,
Oncorhynchus Kisutch, oncorhynchus masou, and
oncorhynchus rhodurus).

0302.1400 Atlantic salmon (salmo salar) and danube salmon (Hucho
hucho)

0302.1900 Other
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0302.2100

Halibut  (Reinhardtius  hippoglossoides, = Hippoglossus
hippoglossus,
Hippoglossus stenolepis)

0302.2200 Plaice (Pleuronectes platessa)

0302.2300 Sole (solea app.)

0302.2900 Other

0302.3100 Albacore or long finned tunas (Thunnus alalunga)

0302.3200 Yellowfin:(Thunnus alalunga)

0302.3300 Skipjack or striped bellied bonito

0302.3400 Bigeye tunas (Thunnus obesus)

0302.3500 Atlantic and pacific bluefin tunas (Thunnus thynnus, thunnus
orientalis)

0302.3600 Southern bluefin tunas (Thunnus thynnus)

0302.3900 Other

0302.4100 Herrings, (Clupea harengus, Clupea pallasii)

0302.4300 Sardines, (Sardina pilchardus,sardinops spp),sardinella
(sardinella spp)
brisling or sprats (sprattus sprattus)

0302.4400 Mackerel (Scomber scombrus, scomber australasicus,
scomber japonicus

0302.4700 Swordfish (xiphias gladius)

0302.5100 Cod, (Gadus morhua, Gadus ogac, Gadus macrocephalus)

0302.5200 Haddock (Melanogrammus aeglefinus)

0302.5300 Coalfish (Pollachius Virens)

0302.7400 Eels (Anguilla spp.)

0302.8100 Dogfish and other sharks

0302.8300 Toothfish (dissostichus app)

0302.8900 Other

0302.9100

Livers, roes and milt
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Fish, frozen, excluding fish fillets and other fish meat of
heading 03.04

0303.1100 Sockeye salmon (red salmon) (oncorhynchus nerka)

0303.1200 Other frozen pacific salmon (Oncorhynhus gorbuscha,
oncorhynchusketa, Oncorhynchus schawytscha,
oncorhynchus Kasich, oncorhynchus masque, and
oncorhynchus rhodurus

0303.1300 Trout, frozen excluding livers & roes (salmo trutta,
onchorhyncusmykiss, clarki etc)

0303. 1400 Trout (salmo trutta, oncorhynchus mykiss, oncorhynchus
clarki, oncorhynchus aguabonita, oncorhynchus gilae,
oncorhynchusapachea and oncorhynchus chrysogaster

0303.1900 Other

0303.2600 Eels (Anguilla spp.)

0303.3100 Halibut, frozen (Reinhardtiushippoglossoides)
Hippoglossushippoglossus, Hippoglossus stenolepis

0303.3200 Plaice (Pleuronectes platessa)

0303.3300 Sole (Solea spp.)

0303.3900 Other

0303.4100 Albacore or long finned tunas (Thunnus alalunga)

0303.4200 Yellowfin tunas (Thunnus albacares)

0303.4300 Skipjack or strip bellied bonito

0303.4400 Bigeye tunas (Thunnus obesus)

0303.4500 Atlantic and pacific Bluefin tunas (Thunnus thynnus,
Thunnusorientallis)

0303.4600 Southern bluefin tunas (Thunnus maccoyii)

0303.4900 Other

0303.5100 Herrings, (Clupea harengus, clupea pallasii)

0303.5300 Sardines (sardine pilchardus, sardinops spp.), sardinella

(sardinella spp.)
brisling or sprats (sprattus sprattus)
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0303.5400 Mackerel (scomber scombrus, scomber australasicus,
scomber japonicus)
0303.5500 Jack and horse mackerel (Trachurus spp.)
0303.5700 Swordfish (xiphias gladius)
0303.6300 Cod, (Gadus morhua, Gadus ogac, Gadus macrocephalus)
0303.6400 Haddock ( Melanogrammus aeglefinus)
0303.6500 Coalfish ( pokkachius virens)
0303.6600 Hake ( merluccius spp, Urophycis app)
0303.8100 Dogfish and other sharks
0303.8300 Toothfish ( dissostichus app)
0303.8400 Sea bass (Dicentrarchus spp.)
0303.8900 Other
0303.9110 Livers and roes
Fish fillets and other fish meat (whether or not minced),
fresh chilled or frozen
0304.4500 Swordfish (Xiphias gladius) fresh or chilled fillets
0304.4600 Toothfish ( Dissostichus spp) fresh or chilled fillets
0304.4900 Other fresh or chilled fillets
0304.5400 Swordfish (Xiphias gladius) other fish meat fresh or chilled
0304.5500 Toothfish (Dissostichus spp.) other fish meat fresh orchilled
0304.5900 Other fish meat fresh or chilled
0304.8400 Swordfish (Xiphias gladius) frozen fillets
0304.8500 Toothfish (Dissostichus spp.) frozen fillets
0304.8900 Other frozen fillets
Other frozen:
0304.9100 Swordfish (Xiphias gladius)
0304.9200 Toothfish (Dissostichus spp)

0304.9900

Other
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Fish, dried, salted or in brine; smoked fish whether or
not cooked before or during the smoking process; flours,
meals and pellets of fish, fit for human

consumption.

0305.2000

Livers, roes and milt of fish, dried, smoked, salted or in brine

Fish fillets, dried, salted or in brine, but not smoked

0305.3100

Tilapias (Oreochromis spp.), catfish (Pangasius spp. silurus
spp. Clarias spp. Ictalurus spp.), Carp (Cyprinus spp.,
Carassius spp., Ctenopharyngodon idellus,
Hypophthalmichthys spp. Cirrhinus spp., Mylapharyngodon
piceus, Catla catla, Labeo spp., Osteochilus hasselti,
leptobarbus hoeveni, Megalobrama spp.), eels (Anguilla
spp.), Nile perch (Lates niloticus) and snakesheads (channa

spp.)

0305.3200

Fish of the families Bregmacerotidae, Euclichthyidae,
Gadidae, Macrouridae, Melanonidae, Merluccidae, Moridae
and Muraenolepididae.

0305.3900

Other

Smoked fish including fillets, other than edible fish offal:

0305.4100

Pacific salmon, (Oncorhynchusnerka nerka, oncorhynchus
gorbuscha, oncorhynchus keta, oncorhynchus tschawytscha,
Oncorhynchus Kisutch, oncorhynchus masou, and
oncorhynchus rhodurus). Atlantic salmo (Salmo

solar) and Danube salmon (Huchohucho)

0305.4200

Herrings (Clupeaharengus, clupea pallasii)

0305.4900

Other

Dried fish , other than edible fish offal, whether or not
salted but not smoked:

0305.5100

Cod (Gadus morhua, Gadus ogac, gadus macrocephalus)

0305.5900

Other
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Fish salted but not dried or smoked and fish in brine other
than edible fish offal:

0305.6100 Herrings (Clupea harengus, clupea pallasii)

0305.6200 Cod (Gadus morhua, Gadus ogac, gadus macrocephalus)

0305.6300 Anchovies (Engraulisspp)

0305.6900 Other
Flours, meals and pellets of fish, crustaceans, molluscs and
other aquatic invertebrates, fit for human consumption.

0309.1000 Of fish
Milk and cream, concentrated or containing added sugar
or other sweetening matter
Of fat content, by weight, not exceeding 1%.

0401.1010 In immediate bottles made of PET or Plastics

0401.1020 In immediate bottles made of glass

0401.1090 In immediate bottles made of other materials
Of a fat content, by weigh, exceeding 1% but not exceeding
6%.

0401.2011 In immediate bottles made PET or Plastics

0401.2013 In immediate bottles made of glass

0401.2019 Other
Other

0401.2091 In immediate bottles made of PET or Plastics

0401.2092 In immediate bottles made of glass

0401.2099 In immediate bottles made of other materials

0401.4000 Of a fat content, by weight, exceeding 6% but not exceeding
10%

0401.5000 Of a fat content, by weight, exceeding 10%

Milk and cream, concentrated or containing added sugar
or other sweetening matter
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0402.1000

In powder, granules, or other solid forms, of a fat content, by
weigh, not exceeding 1.5%

In powder, granules, or other solid forms, of a fat
content, by weigh, not exceeding 1.5%

0402.2100 Not containing added sugar or other sweetening matter
0402.2900 Other
0402.9100 Not containing added sugar or other sweetening matter
0402.9900 Other
Cheese and curd.
0406.1000 Fresh (unripen or uncured) cheese, including whey cheese,
and curd
0406.2000 Grated or powdered cheese, of all kinds
0406.3000 Processed cheese not granted or powdered
0406.4000 Blue Veined cheese and other cheese containing veins
produced by Penicillium roqueforti.
0406.9000 Other cheese
Birds eggs in shell, fresh, preserved or cooked.
Fertilized eggs for incubation:
0407.1100 Of fowls of the species gallus domesticus
0407.1900 Egg for hatching
Potatoes, fresh or chilled
0701.1000 Seed
0701.9000 Other
0702.0000 Tomatoes, fresh or chilled.

Onion, Shallots, garlic leeks and other alliaceous
vegetables, fresh or chilled
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0703.1000 Onions and shallots

0703.2000 Garlic

0703.9000 Leeks and other alliaceous vegetables
Cabbages, cauliflowers, kohlrabi, kale and similar edible
brassicas, fresh or chilled
Cauliflowers and headed broccoli

0704.1010 Cauliflower

0704.1090 Headed broccoli

0704.2000 Brussels sprouts fresh or chilled
Other

0704.9010 Chinese cabbages

0704.9090 Other
Lettuce (Lactuca Sativa) and Chicory (Cichorium spp.)
fresh or chilled

0705.1100 Cabbage Lettuce (head lettuce)

0705.1900 Other lettuce

0705.2100 Witloof chicory (Cichorium intybus var. foliosum)

0705.2900 Other Chicory
Carrots, turnips, salad beetroot, salsify, celeriac, radishes
and similar edible roots, fresh and chilled.

0706.1010 Carrots

0706.1020 Turnips

0706.9010 Beetroot

0706.9020 Salsify

0706.9090 Other similar edible roots, fresh or chilled

0707.0000 Cucumbers and gherkins, fresh or chilled
Leguminous vegetables, shelled or unshelled, fresh or
chilled.

0708.1000 Peas ( pisum saltivum)

0708.2000 Beans (Vigna spp., phaseolus spp.)
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0708.9000

Other leguminous vegetables

Other Vegetables fresh or chilled.

0709.2000 Asparagus

0709.3000 Aubergines (egg plants)

0709.4000 Celery other than celeriac

0709.5100 Mushrooms of the genus Agaricus

0709.5900 Other
Fruits of the genus capsicum or of the genus Pimenta

0709.6010 Of the genus capsicum

0709.6020 Long red/green chilli

0709.6030 Medium white chilli

0709.6090 Other

0709.7000 Spinach, New Zealand spinach and orache spinach (garden
spinach)

0709.9910 Chayote

0709.9990 Other
Dried leguminous vegetables, shelled or unshelled, whether
or not skinned
or split

0713.4000 Lentils
Manioc, arrowroot, salep, Jerusalem artichokes, sweet
potatoes and similar roots and tubers with high starch or
insulin content, fresh, chilled, frozen or dried, whether or
not sliced or in the form of pellets; sago pith

0714.1000 Manioc (cassava)

0714.2000 Sweet potatoes

0714.3000 Yams (Dioscorea spp.)

0714.9010 Cocoyam

0714.9020 Yam

0714.9090 Other similar roots and tubers with high starch or insulin

content, fresh, chilled, frozen or dried, whether or not sliced or
in the form of pellet.
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Bananas, including plantains, fresh or dried

Plantains
0803.1010 Fresh
0803.1090 Dried
Other
0803.9010 Fresh
0803.9090 Dried
Dates, figs, pineapples, avocados, guavas, mangoes and
mangosteens, fresh or dried
0804.1010 Fresh
0804.1090 Dried
Figs
0804.2010 Fresh
0804.2090 Dried
0804.3000 Pineapples fresh or dried
0804.4000 Avocados fresh or dried
Guavas, mangoes and mangosteens
0804.5010 Mangoes fresh or dried
0804.5090 Other
Citrus fruits, fresh or dried
0805.1000 Oranges
Mandarins (including tangerines and satsumas):
clementines, wilkings and similar citrus hybrids:
0805.2100 Mandarins (including tangerines and satsumas)
0805.2200 Clementines
0805.2900 Other
0805.4000 Grapefruit, including pomelos
0805.5000 Lemons (Citrus limon Citrus limonum) and limes (Citrus

aurantifolia, Citrus latifolia)
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0805.9000

Other

Grapes, fresh or dried

0806.1000 Fresh grapes,

0806.2000 Dried grapes
Melons (including watermelons) and papaws (papayas),
fresh

0807.1100 Watermelons

0807.1910 Cantaloupe

0807.1990 Other melons

0807.2000 Papaws (papayas)
Apples, pears and quinces, fresh

0808.1000 Apples fresh

0808.3000 Pears fresh

0808.4000 Quinces fresh
Apricots, cherries, peaches (including nectarines), plums
and sloes, fresh

0809.1000 Apricots, fresh.

0809.2100 Sour cherries (Prunus cerasus)

0809.2900 Other cherries, fresh

0809.3000 Peaches, including nectarines fresh

0809.4000 Plums and sloes, fresh
Other fruits, fresh

0810.1000 Strawberries, fresh

0810.2000 Raspberries, blackberries, mulberries and loganberries fresh

0810.3000 Black, white or red currants and gooseberries

0810.4000 Cranberries, bilberries and other fruits of the genus vaccinum
fresh

0810.5000 Kiwifruits

0810.6000 Durians

0810.7000 Persimmons

0810.9010 Star fruit

0810.9090 Other
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Coffee, whether or not roasted or decaffeinated: coffee husks
and skins: coffee substitutes containing coffee in any
proportion.

Coffee, not roasted:

0901.1100 Not decaffeinated

0901.1200 Decafteinated
Coffee roasted:

0901.2100 Not decaffeinated

0901.2200 Decaffeinated

0901.9010 Coffee husks and skins

0901.9090 Other
Tea, whether or not flavoured

0902.1000 Green tea (not fermented ) in immediate packings of a content not
exceeding 3kg

0902.2000 Other green tea (not fermented)

0902.3000 Black tea (fermented) and partly fermented tea, in immediate
packaging of a content not exceeding 3kg

0902.4000 Other black tea (fermented) and other partly fermented tea

0903.0000 Mate
Rice

1006.1000 Rice in the husk (paddy or rough)

1006.2000 Husked (brown) rice
Semi milled or wholly milled rice, whether or not polished or
glazed.

1006.3010 Long grain rice

1006.3020 Basmati rice

1006.3090 Other

1006.4000 Broken rice
Wheat or meslin flour.

1101.0010 Plain flour

1101.0020 High protein flour

1101.0090 Other
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Cereal groats, meal and pellets

Groats and meal:

1103.1100 Of wheat

1103.1300 Of maize (corn)

1103.1900 Of other cereals

1103.2000 Pellets
Cereals grains otherwise worked (for example, hulled,
rolled, flaked, pearled, sliced or kibbled), except rice of
heading 10.06; germ of cereals, whole, rolled, flaked or
ground.
Rolled or flaked grains:

1104.1200 Of oats

1104.1900 Of other cereals
Other worked grains (for example hulled, pearled, sliced or
kibbled)

1104.2200 Of oats

1104.2300 Of maize (corn)

1104.2900 Of other cereals

1104.3000 Germs of cereals, whole, rolled, flaked or ground
Soya bean oil and its fractions, whether or not refined, but
not chemically modified

1507.1000 Crude oil, whether or not degummed

1507.9000 Other
Ground nut oil and its fractions, whether or not refined, but
not chemically modified

1508.1000 Crude oil,

1508.9000 Other
Olive oil and its fractions, whether or not refined, but not
chemically modified.

1509.2000 Extra virgin olive oil

1509.3000 Virgin olive oil

1509.4000 Other virgin olive oils

1509.9000

Other
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Sunflower seed, safflower or cotton seed oil and fractions
thereof, whether or not refined, but not chemically modified.

1512.1100 Crude oil from sunflower seed or safflower oil and fractions
thereof

1512.1900 Other oil from sunflower seed or safflower oil and fractions thereof
Coconut (copra), palm kernel or babassu oil and its fractions
thereof, whether or not refined but not chemically modified

1513.1100 Crude oil

1513.1900 Other
Rape, colza or mustard oil and fractions thereof, whether or
not refined, but not chemically modified
Low erucic acid rape or colza oil and its fractions

1514.1100 Crude oil

1514.1900 Other
Other

1514.9100 Crude oil

1514.9900 Other
Other fixed vegetable fats and oils ( including jojoba oil) and
their fractions, whether or not refined, but not chemically
modified
Maize (corn) oil and its fractions:

1515.2100 Crude oil

1515.3000 Castor oil and its fractions

1515.5000 Sesame oil and its fractions
Margarine: edible mixtures or preparation of animal or
vegetable fats or oils or of fractions of different fats or oils of
this chapter, other than edible fats or oils or their fractions of
heading 15.16

1517.1000 Margarine, excluding liquid margarine
Other prepared or preserved meat, meat offal or blood

1602.1010 Homogenised preparations specifically prepared for infants

Prepared or preserved fish; caviar and caviar substitutes prepared
form fish eggs

Fish, whole or in pieces, but not minced
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1604.1400

Tunas, skipjack and bonito (sarda spp.)

Other prepared or preserved fish

1604.2010

Canned Tuna

Malt extract; food preparations of flour, groats, meal, starch or
malt extract, not containing cocoa or containing less than 40%
by weight of cocoa calculated on a totally defatted basis, not
elsewhere specified or included; food preparations of goods of
heading 04.01 to04.04, not containing cocoa or containing less
than 5 % by weight of cocoa calculated on a totally defatted
basis, not elsewhere specified or included.

1701.1200

Beet sugar.

1701.1300

Cane sugar specified in Subheading Note 2 to this chapter.

1701.1400

Other cane sugar

Other cane or beet sugar and chemically pure sucrose, in solid
form

1701.9100

Containing added flavouring or colouring matter

1701.9900

Other

Malt extract; food preparations of flour, groats, meal, starch
ormalt extract, not containing cocoa or containing less than 40
% by weight of cocoa calculated on a totally defatted basis, not
elsewhere specified or in cluded; food preparations of goods of
headings 04.01 to 04.04, not containing cocoa or containing
less than 5 % by weight of cocoa calculated on a totally
defatted basis, not elsewhere specified or included.

1901.1000

Preparations for infant use, put up for retail sale

Prepared food obtained by the swelling or roasting of cereals
or cereal products (for example, corn flakes); cereals (other
than maize (corn)) in grain form or in the form of flakes or
other worked grains (except flour, groats and meal), p re
cooked, or otherwise prepared, not elsewhere specified or
included.

1904.1000

Prepared food obtained by the swelling or roasting of cereals or
cereal products

1904.2000

Prepared foods obtained from unroasted cereals flakes or from
mixtures of unroasted cereal flakes and roasted cereal flakes or
swelled cereals
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1904.3000

Bulgur wheat

Other

1904.9090

Other

Other vegetables prepared or preserved otherwise than by
vinegar or acetic acid, not frozen, other than products of

heading 20.06

Homogenised vegetables

2005.1010

Homogenised preparation, specifically for infants or young

children

Homogenised preparations

2007.1010

Homogenised preparations of fruits, specifically for infants or

young children

Orange juice:

Not frozen, of brix value not exceeding 20

2009.1210

Juices formulated for infants

Grapefruits (including pomelo) juice:

2009.2110

Juices formulated for infants

Juice of any other single citrus fruit:

of brix value not exceeding 20

2009.3110

Juices formulated for infants

Pineapple juice:

Of brix value not exceeding 20

2009.4110

Juices formulated for infants

Tomato juice

2009.5010

Juices formulated for infants

Grape Juice ( including grape must):

Of brix value not exceeding 30

2009.6110

Juices formulated for infants

Apple juice;

Of brix value not exceeding 30

2009.7110

Juices formulated for infants
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Cranberry (Vaccinium macrocarpon, Vaccinium oxycoccos,
vaccinium vitis idaea) juice

2009.8110

Juices formulated for infants with no sugar added

Other

2009.8910

Juices formulated for infants with no sugar added

Mixtures of Juices

2009.9010

Mixtures of juices especially for infants

Extracts, essences and concentrates, of coffee, tea or mate2and
preparations with a basic of these products or with a basis of
coffee, tea or mate2;roasted chicory and other roasted coffee
substitutes, and extracts, essences and concentrates thereof

Extracts, essences and concentrates, of coffee, and preparations
with a basic of these extracts, essences or concentrates or with
a basis of coffee:

2101.1100

Extracts, essences and concentrates

2101.1200

Preparations with a basic of extracts, essences or concentrates or
with a basic of coffee

2101.2000

Extracts, essence and concentrates of tea or mate, and
preparations with basic of these extracts, essences or
concentrates or with a basis of tea or mate

Roasted chicory and other roasted coffee substitutes, and
extracts, essences and concentrated thereof:

2101.3010

Not decaffeinated

2101.3020

Decaffeinated

Sauces and preparations thereof; mixed condiments and mixed
seasonings; mustard flour and meal prepared mustard

2103.1000

Soya sauce

2103.2000

Tomato Ketchup and other tomato sauces

2103.3000

Mustard flour and meal and prepared mustard

Other

2103.9010

Chili sauce

2103.9090

Other
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Soups and broths and preparations thereof; homogenized
composite food preparations

Soups and broths and preparations thereof:

2104.1010 Homogenised composite food preparations, for infants

2104.1090 Other

2104.2000 Homogenised composite food preparations
Food preparations not elsewhere specified or included

2106.9031 Herbal infusions

2106.9091 Food preparations specially designed for babies

2308. 0000 Vegetable materials and vegetable waste, vegetable residues
and by products, whether or not in the form of pellets, of a
kind used in animal feeding, not elsewhere specified or
included
Preparations of a kind used in animal feeding
Mixed feeds or mixed feed ingredients

2309. 9011 Poultry feeds, prepared

2309. 9012 Dairy cattle feed, prepared

2309. 9013 Other cattle feed, prepared

2309. 9014 Swine feed, prepared

2309. 9015 Other livestock feed, prepared

2501.0000 Salt (including table salt and denatured salt) and pure sodium
chloride, whether or not in aqueous solution or containing
added anti caking or free flowing agents; sea water
Petroleum oils and oils obtained from bituminous minerals,
other than crude;
preparations not elsewhere specified or included, containing
by weight 70%
or more of petroleum oils or of oils obtained from bituminous
minerals, these oils being the basic constituents of the
preparations; waste oils
Light oils and preparations

2710.1210 Aviation gasoline (Avgas)
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2710.1220 Motor gasoline

2710.1911 Ketones type Jet fuel

2710.1921 Gasoil ( diesel)

2710.1922 Fuel oils

2711.1900 Other
Ketones and quinones, whether or not with other oxygen
function, and other halogenated, sulphonated, nitrated or
nitrosated derivatives
Acyclic ketones without other oxygen function:

2914.1100 Acetone

2914.1200 Butanone (methyl ethyl ketone)

2914.1300 4 Methylpenthan 2 one (methyl isobutyl ketone)
Cyclanic, cyclenic or cycloterpenic ketones without other
oxygen function

2914.2200 Cyclohexanone and methylcyclohexanones

2914.2300 Ionones and methylionones

2914.2900 Other
Aromatic ketones without other oxygen function:

2914.3100 Phenylavetone (phenylprpan 2 one)

2914.3900 Other

2914.4000 Ketone alcohols and ketone - aldehydes

2914.5000 Ketone phenols and Ketones with other oxygen function

2914.6100 Anthraquinone

2914.6900 Other quinones

2914.7100 Chlordecone (ISO)

2914.7900 Other halogenated, sulphonated, nitrated or nitrosated derivatives

Provitamins and vitamins, natural or reproduced by synthesis
(including naturel concentrates). Derivatives thereof used
primarily as vitamins, and intermixtures of the foregoing,
whether or not in any solvent

2936.2100

Vitamins A and their derivatives
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2936.2200 Vitamins Bland its derivatives

2936.2300 Vitamins B2 and its derivatives

2936.2400 D or DL pantothenic acid (Vitamins B3or vitamin B5) and its
derivatives

2936.2500 Vitamins B6 and its derivatives

2936.2600 Vitamins B12 and its derivatives

2936.2700 Vitamins C and its derivatives

2936.2800 Vitamins E and its derivatives

2936.2900 Other vitamins and their derivatives

2936.9000 Others, including natural concentrates
Hormones, prostaglandin, thromboxanes and leukotrienes,
natural or reproduced by synthesis; derivatives and
structural analogues thereof, including chain modified
polypeptides, used primarily as hormones
Polypeptides hormones, protein hormones and glycoprotein
hormones, their derivatives and structural analogues

2937.1100 Somatotropin, its derivatives and structural analogues

2937.1200 Insulin and its salts

2937.1900 Other polypeptide hormones, protein hormones and glycoprotein
hormones

2937.2100 Cortisone, hydrocortisone, prednisone (dihydrocortisone) and
prednisolone (dehydrohydrocortisone)

2937.2200 Halogenated derivatives of corticosteriodal hormones

2937.2300 Oestrogens and progestogens

2937.2900 Other steroidal hormones, their derivatives and structural
analogues

2937.5000 Prostaglandins, thromboxanes, and leukotrienes, their derivatives
and structural analogue

2937.9000 Other
Antibiotics

Penicillins and other derivatives with a penicillanic acid
structure; salts thereof
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2941.1010

Amoxillin and its salts

2941.1020

Amoicillin (INN), metampicillin (INN), Pivampicillin (INN) and
their salts

2941.1090

Other penicillins and their derivatives; salts thereof

2941.2010

Dihydrostreptomycin, its salts, eaters and hydrates

2941.2090

Other Streptomycins and their derivatives; salts thereof

2941.3000

Tetracyclines and their derivatives; salts thereof

2941.4000

Chloramphenicol and its derivatives; salts thereof

2941.5000

Erthromycin and its derivatives; salts thereof

2941.9000

Other antibiotics

Glands and other organs for organo therapeutic uses, dried,
whether or not powdered; extracts of glands or other organs or
other secretions for organo therapeutic uses; heparin and its
salts; other human or animal substances prepared for
therapeutic or prophylactic uses, not elsewhere specified or
included

3001.2000

Extracts of glands or other organs or of their secretions

3001.9000

Other human or animal substances prepared for therapeutic or
prophylactic uses, not elsewhere specified or included

Human blood; animal blood prepared for therapeutic,
prophylactic or diagnostic uses; antisera, other blood fraction
and immunological products, whether or not modified or
obtained by means of biotechnological processes; vaccines,
toxins, cultures of micro organisms (excluding yeasts)and
similar products

Antisera, other blood fractions and immunological products,
whether or not modified or obtained by means of
biotechnological processes:

3002.1200

Antisera and other blood fractions and modified immunological
products

3002.1300

Immunological products, unmixed, not put up in measured doses
or in forms or packings for retail sale

3002.1400

Immunological products, mixed, not put up in measured doses or
in forms or packings for retail sale
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3002.1500

Immunological products, put up in measured doses or in forms or
packings for retail sale

Vaccines, toxins, cultures of micro - organisms (excluding yeasts)
and similar products :

3002.4100 Vaccines for human medicine

3002.4200 Vaccines for veterinary medicine

3002.4900 Other
Cell cultures, whether or not modified :

3002.5100 Cell therapy products

3002.5900 Other

3002.9000 Other immunological products, whether or not modified or
obtained by means of biotechnological processes; vaccines, toxins,
cultures of micro organisms (excluding yeasts) and similar
products
Medicaments (excluding goods of heading 30.02, 30.05 or
30.06) consisting of two or more constituents which have been
mixed together for therapeutic or prophylactic uses, not put
up in measured doses or in forms or packings for retails sale.

3003.1000 Containing penicillins or derivatives thereof, with a penicillanic
acid structure, or their derivatives.

3003.2000 Other medicaments containing antibiotics

3003.3100 Medicaments containing insulin

3003.3900 Other medicaments containing hormones or other products of
heading 29.37
Other, containing alkaloids or derivatives thereof:

3003.4100 Containing ephedrine or its salts

3003.4200 Containing pseudoephedrine (INN) or its salts

3003.4300 Containing norephedrinc or its salts
Other

3003.4910 Containing alkaloids or derivatives thereof but not containing

hormones or other products of heading 29.37 or antibiotics

3003.4990

Other
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3003.6000

Other, containing antimalarial active principles described in
subheading Note 2 to this chapter

3003.9000 Other consisting of two or more constituents which have been
mixed together for therapeutic or prophylactic uses, not put up in
measured doses or in forms or packings for retail sale.
Medicaments (excluding goods of heading 30.02, 30.05 or
30.06) consisting of mixed or unmixed products for
therapeutic or prophylactic uses, put in measured does
including those in the form of transdermal administration
systems) or in forms or packings for retails sale

3004.1000 Containing penicillins or derivatives thereof, with a penicillanic
acid structure or streptomycins or their derivatives

3004.2000 Other, containing antibiotics for retail sale.

3004.3100 Containing insulin

3004.3200 Containing corticosteroid hormones, their derivatives or structural
analogues

3004.3900 Containing hormones or other products of heading 29.37
Other, containing alkaloids or derivatives thereof

3004.4100 Containing ephedrine or its salts

3004.4200 Containing pseudoephedrine (INN) or its salts

3004.4300 Containing norephedrine or its salts
Other

3004.4910 Containing alkaloids or derivatives thereof but not containing
hormones or other products of heading 29.37 or antibiotics

3004.4990 Other

3004.5000 Other, containing vitamins or other products of heading 29.36

3004.6000 Other, containing antimalarial active principles described in
subheading note 2 to this chapter

3004.9000 Other medicaments

Wadding, gauze, bandages and similar articles (for example,
dressings, adhesive plasters, poultices), impregnated or coated
with pharmaceutical substances or put up in forms or packings
for retail sale for medical, surgical, dental or veterinary.

Adhesive dressing and other articles having and adhesive layer
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3005.1010 Medicated plaster
3005.1090 Other adhesive dressings and other articles having an adhesive

layer

3005.9000 Other wadding, gauze, bandages and similar articles impregnated
or coated pharmaceutical substances or put in the forms or
packings for retail sale
Pharmaceutical goods specified in note 4 to chapter 30

3006.1000 Sterile surgical catgut, similar sterile suture materials ( including
sterile absorbable surgical or dental yarns) and sterile tissue
adhesives for surgical wound closure;

3006.3000 Opacifying preparations for X ray examinations; diagnostic
reagents designed to be administered to the patient

3006.4000 Dental cements and other dental fillings; bone reconstruction
cements

3006.5000 First aid boxes and kits

3006.6000 Chemical contraceptive preparations based on hormones, on other
products of heading 29.37 or on spermicide

3006.7000 Gel preparations designed to be used in human or veterinary
medicine as lubricant for parts of the body for surgical operations
or physical examinations or as a coupling agent between the body
and medical instruments

3006.9100 Appliances identifiable for ostomy use

3006.9200 Waste pharmaceuticals

Soap; organic surface active products and preparations for
use as soap, in the form of bars, cakes, moulded pieces or
shapes, whether or not containing soap; organic surface active
products and preparations for washing the skin, in the form
of liquid or cream and put up for retail sale, whether or
not containing soap; paper, wadding, felt and nonwovens,
impregnated, coated or covered with soap or detergent

Soap and organic surface active products and preparations, in
the form of bars, cakes, moulded pieces or shapes, and paper,
wadding, felt and nonwovens, impregnated, coated or covered
with soap or detergent:
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3401.1100 For toilet use (including medicated products)

3401.1900 Other

3401.2000 Soap in other forms
Organic surface-active agents (other than soap); surface-active
preparations, washing preparations (including auxiliary
washing preparations) and cleaning preparations, whether or
not containing soap, other than those of heading 34.01.
Anionic organic surface -active agents, whether or not put up
for retail sale :

3402.3100 Linear alkylbenzene sulphonic acids and their salts

3402.3900 Other
Other organic surface-active agents, whether or not put up for retail
sale :

3402.4100 Cationic

3402.4200 Non ionic

3402.4900 Other

3402.5000 Preparations put up for retail sale

3402.9000 Other
Insecticides, rodenticides, fungicides, herbicides, anti
sprouting products and plant growth regulators,
disinfectants and similar products, put up in forms or
packings for retail sale or as preparations or articles (for
example, sulphur treated bands, wicks and candles, and fly
papers)
Insecticides

3808.9190 In other packaging
Fungicides

3808.9290 In other packaging
Herbicides, anti sprouting product and plant growth
regulators

3808.9390 In other packaging
Disinfectants

3808.9410

Hand Sanitiser
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3808.9490

Other

Other

Rodenticides

3808.9919

In other packaging

Other similar products

3808.9929

In other packaging

Diagnostic or laboratory reagents on a backing, prepared
diagnostic or laboratory reagents or not on a backing, other
than those of heading 30.02 or 30.06; certified reference
materials.

Diagnostic or laboratory reagents on a backing, prepared
diagnostic or laboratory reagents whether or not on a backing,
whether or not put up in the form of Kits :

3822.1100

For malaria

3822.1200

For Zika and other diseases transmitted by mosquitoesof the genus
Aedes

3822.1300

For blood-grouping

3822.1900

Other

3822.9000

Other

Other articles of wood

4421.2000

Coffins

Toilet paper and similar paper, cellulose wadding or webs of
cellulose fibres of a kind for household or sanitary purposes, in
rolls of a width not exceeding 36 cm, or cut to size or shape;
handkerchiefs, cleaning tissues, towels, tablecloths, serviettes,
bed sheets and similar household, sanitary or hospital
articles of apparel and clothing accessories, of paper pulp,
paper, cellulose wadding or webs of cellulose fibres

4818.3000

Tablecloths and serviettes

Printed books, brochures, leaflets and similar printed matter,
whether or notin simple sheets

4901.1000

In single sheets, whether or not folded

4901.9100

Dictionaries and encyclopedias and serial installments thereof
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4901.9900 Other
4903.0000 Childrens picture, drawing or colouring books

4904.0000

Music, printed or in manuscript, whether or not bound or
illustrated

Maps and hydrographic or similar charts of all kinds,
including atlases, wall maps, topographical plans and globes,
printed.

4905.2000

In book form

4905.9000

Other

4906.0000

Plans and drawings for architectural, engineering, industrial,
commercial, topographical or similar purposes, being originals
drawn by hand; hand written texts; photographic
reproductions on sensitized paperand carbon

copies of the foregoing.

Unused postage, revenue or similar stamps of current or new
issue in the country in which they have, or will have, a
recognized face value; stamp impressed paper; banknotes;
cheque forms; stock, share or bond certificates

and similar documents of title

4907.0010

Postage, revenue and similar stamps

4907.0020

Bank notes

4907.0030

Cheques books and cheques

4907.0090

Other

Transfers (decalcomanias)

4908.1000

Transfers (decalcomanias) vitrifiable

4908.9000

Other transfers

4909.0000

Printed or illustrated postcards; printed cards bearing
personal greetings, mess ages or announcements, whether or
not illustrated, with or without envelopes or trimmings

4910.0000

Calendars of any kind, printed including calendar blocks

Other printed matter, including printed pictures and
photographs

4911.1000

Trade advertising material, commercial catalogues and the like
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4911.9100

Pictures, designs and photographs

4911.9900

Other

Babies’ garments and clothing accessories

6209.2000

Of cotton

6209.3000

Of synthetic fibres

6209.9000

Of other textile materials

Coin

7118.9000

Other coins

Motor cars and other motor vehicles principally designed for
the transport of persons (other than those of heading 87.02),
including station wagons and racing cars.

Other vehicles, with only spark - ignition internal combustion
piston engine:

Of a cylinder capacity not exceeding 1,000 cc

8703.2110

Ambulances

Of a cylinder capacity exceeding 1,000 cc but not exceeding
1,500 cc:

8703.2210

Ambulances

Of a cylinder capacity exceeding 1,500 cc but not exceeding
3,000 cc:

Of a cylinder capacity exceeding 1,500 cc but not exceeding
1,600 cc:

8703.2311

Ambulances

Of a cylinder capacity exceeding 1,600 cc but not exceeding
2,000 cc:

8703.2321

Ambulances

Of a cylinder capacity exceeding 2,000 cc but not exceeding
3,000 cc:

8703.2331

Ambulances

Of a cylinder capacity exceeding 3,000 cc:

8703.2410

Ambulances

Other vehicles, with only compression - ignition internal
combustion piston engine (diesel or semi-diesel):
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Of a cylinder capacity exceeding 1,500 cc:

8703.3110 Ambulances
Of a cylinder capacity exceeding 1,500 cc but not exceeding
2,500 cc:
Of a cylinder capacity exceeding 1,500 cc but not exceeding
1,600 cc:

8703.3211 Ambulances
Of a cylinder capacity exceeding 1,600 cc but not exceeding
2,000 cc:

8703.3221 Ambulances
Of a cylinder capacity exceeding 2,000 cc but not exceeding
2,500 cc:

8703.3231 Ambulances
Of a cylinder capacity exceeding 2,500 cc:

8703.3310 Ambulances
Other vehicles, with both sparking-ignition internal
combustion reciprocating piston engine and electric motor as
motors for propulsion, other than those capable of being
charged by plugging to external source of electric power:
Of a cylinder capacity exceeding not exceeding 1,600 cc:

8703.4011 Ambulances
Of a cylinder capacity exceeding 1,600 cc but not exceeding
2,000 cc:

8703.4021 Ambulances
Of a cylinder capacity exceeding 2,000 cc but not exceeding
2,500 cc:

8703.4031 Ambulances
Of a cylinder capacity exceeding 2,500 cc:

8703.4041 Ambulances

Other vehicles, with both compression-ignition internal
combustion piston engine (diesel or semi-diesel) and electric
motor as motors for propulsion, other than those capable of
being charged by plugging to external source of electric
power:




[28th April 2023] Value Added Tax 172

REPUBLIC OF SEYCHELLES SUPPLEMENT TO OFFICIAL GAZETTE

SI

Of a cylinder capacity exceeding 1,500 cc but not exceeding
1,600 cc:

8703.5011

Ambulances

Of a cylinder capacity exceeding 1,600 cc but not exceeding
2,000 cc:

8703.5021

Ambulances

Of a cylinder capacity exceeding 2,000 cc but not exceeding
2,500 cc:

8703.5031

Ambulances

Of a cylinder capacity exceeding 2,500 cc:

8703.5041

Ambulances

Other vehicles, with both spark -ignition internal combustion
piston engine and electric motor as motors for propulsion,
capable of being charged by plugging to external source of
electric power :

Of a cylinder capacity exceeding 1,500 cc but not exceeding
1,600 cc:

8703.6011

Ambulances

Of a cylinder capacity exceeding 1,600 cc but not exceeding
2,000 cc:

8703.6021

Ambulances

Of a cylinder capacity exceeding 2,000 cc but not exceeding
2,500 cc:

8703.6031

Ambulances

Of a cylinder capacity exceeding 2,500 cc:

8703.6041

Ambulances

Other vehicles, with both compression -ignition internal
combustion piston engine (diesel or semi-diesel) and electric
motor as motors for propulsion, capable of being charged by
plugging to external source of electric power:

Of a cylinder capacity exceeding 1,500 cc but not exceeding
1,600 cc:

8703.7011

Ambulances
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Of a cylinder capacity exceeding 1,600 cc but not exceeding

2,000 cc:

8703.7021 Ambulances
Of a cylinder capacity exceeding 2,000 cc but not exceeding
2,500 cc:

8703.7031 Ambulances
Of a cylinder capacity exceeding 2,500 cc:

8703.7041 Ambulances
Special purpose motor vehicles, other than those principally
designed for the transport of person or goods (for example,
breakdown lorries, crane lorries, fire fighting vehichles,
concrete mixer lorries, road sweeper lorries, spraying lorries,
mobile workshops, mobile radiological units)

8705.3000 Fire fighting vehicles
Carriages for disabled persons, whether or not motorized
or otherwise
mechanically propelled

8713.1000 Not mechanically propelled

8713.9000 Other

8715.0000 Baby carriages and part thereof
Photographic (other than cinematographic) camera;
photographic flashlight apparatus and flashbulbs other than
discharge lamps of heading 85.39

9006.3000 Camera specially designed for underwater use, for aerial survey or
for medical or surgical examination of internal organs: comparison
cameras for forensic or criminological purposes
Instruments and appliances used in medical, surgical, dental
or veterinary sciences, including scintigraphic apparatus,
other electro medical apparatus and sight testing instruments
Electro diagnostic apparatus (including apparatus for
functional exploratory
examination or for checking physiological parameters):

9018.1100 Electro cardiographs

9018.1200 Ultrasonic scanning apparatus
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9018.1300

Magnetic resonance imaging apparatus

9018.1400 Scintigraphic apparatus

9018.1900 Other electro diagnostic apparatus

9018.2000 Ultra violet or infra red ray apparatus

9018.3100 Syringes, with or without needles

9018.3200 Tubular metal needles and needles for sutures

9018.3900 Other syringes, needles, catheters, cannulae, and the like

9018.4100 Dental drill engines, needles, whether or not combined on single
base with other dental equipment

9018.4900 Other instruments and appliances, used in dental sciences

9018.5000 Other ophthalmic instruments and appliances

9018.9000 Other instruments and appliances used in medical/surgical/dental
or veterinary science
Mechano therapy appliances; massage apparatus;
psychological aptitude testing apparatus; ozone therapy,
oxygen therapy, aerosol therapy, artificial respiratory or other
therapeutic respiratory apparatus
Mechano therapy appliances, massage apparatus,
psychological aptitude testing apparatus

9019.1010 Sex therapy appliances

9019.1090 Other

9019.2000 Ozone therapy, oxygen therapy, aerosol therapy artificial
respiration or other therapeutic respiration apparatus
Apparatus based on the use of X rays or of alpha, beta or
gamma radiations, whether or not for medical, surgical,
dental or veterinary uses, including radiography or
radiotherapy apparatus, X ray tubes and other X ray
generators, high tension generators, control panels and
desks, screens, examination or treatment tables, chairs and
the like.
Apparatus based on the use of X rays, whether or not for
medical, surgical, dental or veterinary uses, including
radiography or radiotherapy apparatus

9022.1200 Computed tomography apparatus




[28th April 2023] Value Added Tax 175

REPUBLIC OF SEYCHELLES SUPPLEMENT TO OFFICIAL GAZETTE SI

9022.1300 Other, for dental uses

9022.1400 Other, for medical, surgical or veterinary uses

9022.1900 Apparatus based on the use of X rays for other uses

9022.2100 For medical, surgical, dental or veterinary uses

9022.3000 X ray tubes

9022.9000 Other, including parts and accessories
Instruments and apparatus for physical or chemical analysis
(for example, polarimeters, refractometers, spectrometers, gas
or smoke analysis apparatus); Instruments and apparatus for
measuring or checking viscosity, porosity, expansion, surface
tension or the like; instruments and apparatus for measuring
or checking quantities of heat, sound or light (including
exposure meters); microtomes
Other instruments and apparatus

9027.8100 Mass spectrometres

9027.8900 Other
Pianos, including automatic pianos; harpsichords and
other keyboard stringed instruments

9201.1000 Upright pianos

9201.2000 Grand pianos

9201.9000 Other harpsichords and other keyboard stringed instruments
Other string musical instruments (for example, guitars, violins,
harps)

9202.1000 String musical instruments played with a bow

9202.9000 Other string musical instruments
Wind musical instruments (for example, keyboard pipe
organs, accordions, clarinets, trumpets, bagpipes), other than
fairground organs and mechanical street organs

9205.1000 Brass wind instruments

9205.9000 Other wind musical instruments

9206.0000 Percussion musical instruments (e.g. drums, xylophones,

cymbals, castanets, maracas)
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Musical instruments, the sound of which is produced, or must
be amplified, electrically (for example, organs, guitars,
accordions)

9207.1000

Keyboard instruments, other than accordions

9207.9000

Other musical instruments, sound of which produced or must be
amplified, electrically

Musical boxes, fairground or gans, mechanical street organs,
mechanical singing birds, musical saws and other musical
instruments not falling within any other heading of this
chapter; decoy calls of all kinds; whistles, call horns and other
mouth blown sound signaling instruments

9208.1000

Musical boxes

9208.9000

Fairground organs, mechanical street organs, mechanical singing
birds, musical saws and other musical instruments not falling
within any other heading of chapter 92

Parts (for example, mechanisms for musical boxes) and
accessories (for example, cards, disc and rolls for
mechanical instruments) of musical instruments;
metronomes, tuning forks and pitch pipes of all kinds

9209.3000

Musical instruments strings

9209.9100

Parts and accessories for pianos

9209.9200

Parts and accessories for the music instruments of heading 92.02

9209.9400

Parts and accessories for the musical instrument of heading 92.07

9209.9900

Other parts and accessories for musical instruments

Dentists; barbers’ or similar chairs and parts thereof

Dentists chair and parts thereof

Sanitary towel ( pads) and tampons, napkins and napkin liners
for babies and similar articles, of any materials

9619.0010

Napkins and napkin liners for babies and adult

9619.0090

Other

9903.0000

Goods re imported after exportation for repair, alteration,
renovation, processing and replacement, under warranty or
personal use provided that no drawback for any duty was
allowed on exportation and provided further that the goods
were produced to the proper officer prior to exportation




[28th April 2023] Value Added Tax 177

REPUBLIC OF SEYCHELLES SUPPLEMENT TO OFFICIAL GAZETTE SI

9904.0000 Personal and household effects that have been in the
importers’ use and

possession for more than 12 months immediately prior to the
importation into Seychelles, as a prescribed by the regulations

9905.0000 Ships stores in transit

9906.0000 Short shipped goods

9907.0000 Human remains

9908.0000 Groupage containers only

MADE this 27" day of April, 2023.

NAADIR HASSAN
MINISTER OF FINANCE,
NATIONAL PLANNING AND TRADE
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S.1. 30 of 2023
HARBOUR ACT
(Cap 90)
The Harbour (Inner Harbour) (Control of Traffic) Regulations, 2023

In the exercise of the powers conferred by Section 3 of the Harbour Act,
the Minister responsible for transport makes the following regulations —

Citation

1. These Regulations may be cited as the Harbour (Inner Harbour)
(Control of Traffic) Regulations, 2023.

Amendment of regulation 2

2. Regulation 2 of the Harbour (Inner Harbour) (Control of Traffic)
Regulations, 1973 in these Regulations referred to as the “principal
Regulations”, is amended as follows —

(a) by inserting in the alphabetical order, the following new
definitions —

“Authority” means the Seychelles Ports Authority;

“knot” means a unit of speed equal to one nautical mile per
hour;

“marine pilot” means a pilot appointed by the Authority.”
(b) in the definition of “nautical mile”, by repealing the words
“6,080 feet” and substituting them with the words “1852

metres”.

Amendment of regulation 3

3. Regulation 3 of the principal Regulations is amended by



[28th April 2023] Harbour Act 139

REPUBLIC OF SEYCHELLES SUPPLEMENT TO OFFICIAL GAZETTE SI

repealing the words “five hundred nautical miles per hour” and substituting
them with the words “five knots”.

Amendment of regulation 4

4. Regulation 4 of the principal Regulations, is amended by
repealing regulation 4 and substituting it with the following —

“Offences and Penalty

4. The driver or person in charge of any boat or ship, who
drives or cause to be driven such boat or ship within the inner
harbour at a speed in excess of five knots commits an offence and
is liable on conviction to a fine of SCR2000 or imprisonment for
a term not exceeding one year or to both.”

Insertion of a new regulation 5

5. The principal Regulations is amended by inserting immediately
after regulation 4 the following new regulation —

“Exemptions

5. A marine pilot or a master of a vessel acting under the
advice of a marine pilot, who drives or causes to be driven a boat
or ship within the inner harbour, is reasonably exempted from the
speed limit of five knots for maneuvering purposes and does not
commit an offence under regulation 4.”

MADE this 25" day of April, 2023.

ANTONY DERJAQUES
MINISTER OF TRANSPORT
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S.I 33 of 2023
LAW COMMISSION ACT
(Act 16 0f 2022)

Law Commission Act (Commencement) Notice, 2023

IN EXERCISE OF THE POWERS CONFERRED BY SECTION 1 OF THE LAW

COMMISSION ACT, THE MINISTER RESPONSIBLE FOR LEGAL AFFAIRS
MAKES THE FOLLOWING NOTICE —

Citation

1. This notice may be cited as the Law Commission Act
(Commencement) Notice, 2023.

Commencement of Act 16 of 2022

2. The Law Commission Act, 2022, shall come into operation on 2™
May, 2023.

MADE this 28" day of April, 2023.

WAVEL RAMKALAWAN
PRESIDENT
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S.1. 32 of 2023
BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP ACT, 2020
(Act 4 of 2020)
Beneficial Ownership (Amendment) Regulations, 2023

Arrangement of Regulations

Regulations

1.

XN R WD

Citation

Amendment of regulation 3

Amendment of regulation 8

Amendment of regulation 10

Amendment of regulation 12

Repeal and substitution of Regulation 13
Amendment of regulation 16

Repeal of First Schedule

Repeal and substitution of Second Schedule

SI
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S.I. 32 0f 2023
BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP ACT, 2020
(Act 4 of 2020)

Beneficial Ownership (Amendment) Regulations, 2023

In exercise of the powers conferred by section 17 of the Beneficial
Ownership Act, 2020, the Minister responsible for Finance hereby makes the
following regulations —

Citation

1. These Regulations may be cited as the Beneficial Ownership
(Amendment) Regulations, 2023.

Amendment of regulation 3

2. Regulation 3 of the Beneficial Ownership Regulations, 2020
(hereinafter referred to as the “principal Regulations™) is amended —

(a) in subregulation (1) —

(i) by repealing in the chapeau the words “or legal
arrangement”;

(ii) by repealing in paragraph (a), the words “or legal
arrangement”;

(b) in subregulation (1)(b) —

(i) by repealing the words “(1)(a), the natural person or
persons” and substituting them with the words “(1)(a)
as to whether the person with the controlling
ownership interest is the beneficial owner or where
no natural person exerts control through ownership
interest, the natural person”;
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(c)

(d)

(e)

(ii) by repealing the words “or legal arrangement”;
in subregulation (1)(c) —

(i) by inserting after the words “exists or” the word
CCHO”;

(ii) by repealing the words “the natural person or
persons” and substituting them with the words “the
natural person”;

(iii) by repealing the words “or legal arrangement, as the
case may be”’;

in subregulation (2) —

(i) by repealing in the chapeau the words “foundation),
shall’and substituting them with the words “a
foundation, a partnership under the Civil Code of
Seychelles Act 2020 (Act 1 of 2021) or a limited
partnership under the Limited Partnerships Act (Cap
281), shall be a natural person who ultimately owns
or controls, whether directly or indirectly, ten percent
or more of ownership interest including the shares or

voting rights of the said legal person”;

(ii) by repealing paragraphs (a) and (b);

in subregulation (3) —

(i) by repealing in paragraph (a) the words “or general
partners” and the words “or legal arrangement, as the

case may be”’;

(ii) by repealing in paragraph (c) the words “or legal
arrangement”;

(iii) by repealing in paragraph (d) the words “or legal
arrangement”;
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(f) in subregulation (4) —

(2

(h)

(1)

()

(ii)

by repealing the chapeau and substituting it with the
following chapeau —

“For the purposes of subregulation (1), the beneficial
owner in the case of a foundation includes, but is not
limited to, a natural person”.

by repealing in paragraph (b) the word “majority”
and substituting it with the word “any”;

by inserting after subregulation (4) the following
subregulation —

(4a) The beneficial owner in the case of a limited

partnership under the Limited Partnerships Act (Cap 281)
shall be determined in accordance with subregulation (1)
notwithstanding the fact that subregulation (1) applies to
legal persons only.”;

in subregulation (5) —

()

(i)

by repealing the chapeau and substituting it with the
following chapeau —

“For the purposes of subregulation (1), the beneficial
owner in the case of a partnership under the Civil
Code of Seychelles Act 2020 (Act 1 of 2021) or
limited partnership under the Limited Partnerships
Act (Cap 281) includes, but not limited to a natural
person who;

by repealing in paragraph (b) the words “majority of
the general partners” and substituting them with the
words “any partner”;

in subregulation (6) —
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(i) by repealing chapeau and substituting it with the
following chapeau —

“Subject to subregulation (7), the beneficial owner in
the case of a trust and other similar legal
arrangements shall be”;

(i) by inserting in paragraph (d), after semicolon (;) the
word “and”;

(iii) by repealing in paragraph (e)(v), semicolon(;) and the
word “and” and substituting with a full stop(.);

(iv) by repealing paragraph (f);

(j) by repealing subregulations (7) to (12) and substituting
them with the following subregulations —

“(7) Where a person under sub-regulation (6)(a), (b),
(c) or (d) is not a natural person, the beneficial owners of
that person shall be the beneficial owners of the trust or the
legal arrangement.

(8)  Where ten percent or more of any ownership
interest is held jointly, then each joint owner shall be treated
as a separate beneficial owner.”;

Amendment of regulation 8

3. Regulation 8 of the principal Regulations is amended by inserting
after the word “purposes” the word “of”.

Amendment regulation 10

4. Regulation 10 of the principal Regulations is amended by
repealing subregulations (2) and (3).

Amendment of regulation 12

5. Regulation 12 of the principal Regulations is amended —



[28th April 2023] Beneficial Ownership Act 183

REPUBLIC OF SEYCHELLES SUPPLEMENT TO OFFICIAL GAZETTE SI

(a) by repealing in the marginal note the words “Form of
register” and substituting them with the word “Beneficial
interest”.

(b) Dby repealing subregulation (1) and substituting with the
following subregulation —

“(1) Every legal person and legal arrangement shall
include and update the register of beneficial owners with
the details of the beneficial interest of each beneficial
owner or each registrable legal person consisting of the —

(a) means and mechanisms through which
ownership or control is exercised; and

(b) numerical value of interest held,
description of voting rights or other forms
of control, management position or other
position held by the beneficial owner,
whichever applicable.”

(c) by repealing subregulations (2), (3) and (4).

Repeal and substitution of Regulation 13

6. Regulation 13 of the principal Regulations is repealed and
substituted with the following new regulation —

“Periodic review of beneficial owners

13.(1) Every legal person or legal arrangement shall, at least
once in every calendar year, review and verify its beneficial
owners, including any changes required to be made to the
registerable particulars of a beneficial owner.

Provided that at least one review and verification shall be
undertaken within 3 months before the anniversary of its
registration under its respective statutory legislation.



[28th April 2023] Beneficial Ownership Act 184

REPUBLIC OF SEYCHELLES SUPPLEMENT TO OFFICIAL GAZETTE SI

(2) Every legal person or legal arrangement shall, not
later than 1 month from the anniversary of its registration under
its respective statutory legislation, keep a declaration of
compliance with subregulation (1) at the principal place of
business of its resident agent in Seychelles.

(3) Alegal person or legal arrangement shall not provide
a false or misleading declaration under sub-regulation (1).

(4) A legal person or legal arrangement which fails to
comply with subregulation (1), (2) or (3) shall be liable to a
penalty not exceeding SCR20,000.

(5) This regulation shall come into operation on such
date as the Minister may, by notice published in the Gazette,
appoint.”.

Amendment of regulation 16

7. Regulation 16 (4) of the principal Regulations is amended by
repealing the words “this regulation” and substituting them with the words
“the Act, these regulations”.

Repeal of First Schedule

8. First Schedule of the principal Regulations is repealed.

Repeal and substitution of Second Schedule

9. Second Schedule of the principal Regulations is repealed and
substituted with the following Schedule —

“SECOND SCHEDULE
(Regulation 14)

In completing the below declaration, the beneficial owner may delete the
below parts which are not relevant and complete the applicable parts of this
Schedule accordingly.
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Part A - To be completed by a beneficial owner of a company

Part B - To be completed by a beneficial owner of a partnership under the
Civil Code of Seychelles Act or a limited partnership under the Limited
Partnerships Act

Part C - To be completed by a beneficial owner of an association
Part D - To be completed by a beneficial owner of a foundation
Part E - To be completed by a beneficial owner of a trust)

Part F - To be completed if beneficial ownership interest arve being held by
nominee(s) on behalf of the beneficial owner, where the nominator is the
beneficial owner.

Part G - To be completed if any beneficial ownership interest are being held
by nominee(s) on behalf of the beneficial owner, where the nominator is not
the beneficial owner.

TO: (Legal person/Legal arrangement Name)
Dated:

RE: Declaration of Beneficial Ownership

I, the undersigned, hereby confirm that [ have become a beneficial owner as
defined in the Beneficial Ownership Act, 2020 in respect of the above legal
person or legal arrangement.

Therefore, I hereby provide you with the below particulars which I confirm
to be true and correct:

1. Name:

2. Residential address:
3. Service address:

4. Date of birth:

5. Nationality:

6.

National Identification Number or equivalent (if any):
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7  Tax Identification Number or equivalent (if any):
8. Date on which I became a beneficial owner:

Part A

9. Particulars of the beneficial owner's beneficial interest:

| am the beneficial owner of the company in view that [:

O ultimately have controlling ownership interest in the company

O control the company through other means

0] hold the position of a senior managing official of the company (can be
selected only if control through ownership or control through other
means above has not been selected)

Further details of my beneficial interest are as follows:

[0 Number and class of shares held (>10%): ........cccoveeveevierieenn,

01 I exercise (whether directly or indirectly) ultimate control over 10% or
more of total voting rights of members in the company

U I am entitled (whether directly or indirectly) to appoint or remove
directors holding majority of the voting rights at the meetings of the
board on all or substantially all matters

O I am otherwise entitled to exercise control over the company or its
management (SPecify): ...,

O Others: (Specity means and mechanism through which ownership or
control is exercised, numerical value of interest held, description of
voting rights or other forms of control, management position or other
position held)
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Part B

O
a
O

L

9. Particulars of the beneficial owner's beneficial interest:

I am the beneficial owner of the partnership in view that I:

ultimately have controlling ownership interest in the partnership
control the partnership through other means

hold the position of a senior managing official of the partnership
(can be selected only if control through ownership or control
through other means above has not been selected)

Further details of my beneficial interest are as follows:

I ultimately own or control (whether directly or indirectly) absolute
decision or veto rights in the conduct or management of the
partnership

I hold the right (whether directly or indirectly) to appoint or remove
any partners of the partnership

I am entitled to the assets of the partnership in the event of the
dissolution of the partnership

Others: (Specify means and mechanism through which ownership or
control is exercised, numerical value of interest held, description of
voting rights or other forms of control, management position or other
position held)




8
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9. Particulars of the beneficial owner's beneficial interest:

[ am the beneficial owner of the association in view that I:

ultimately have controlling ownership interest in the association
control the association through other means

hold the position of a senior managing official of the association
(can be selected only if control through ownership or control
through other means above has not been selected)

Further details of my beneficial interest are as follows:

I'am a member of the committee of management of the association
(state poSItion): .o..ccovveveeveiiciieeenn

[ am otherwise entitled to exercise control over the association or its
management (specify): ..o,

Others: (Specify means and mechanism through which ownership or
control is exercised, numerical value of interest held, description of
voting rights or other forms of control, management position or
other position held)
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PartD

O
0
O

O

9. Particulars of the beneficial owner's beneficial interest:

[ am the beneficial owner of the foundation in view that I:

ultimately have controlling ownership interest in the foundation

control the foundation through other means

hold the position of a senior managing official ot the foundation (can
be selected only if control through ownership or control through other
means above has not been selected)

Further details of my beneficial interest are as follows:

I hold (whether directly or indirectly) absolute decision or veto rights in
the conduct and management of the foundation

I hold the right (whether directly or indirectly) to appoint or remove
any of the councillors of the foundation

| am a beneficiary in whom an interest is vested

I am default recipient of the assets of the foundation in the event of its
termination

I am benefiting from the foundation

Others (Specify means and mechanism through which ownership or
control is exercised, numerical value of interest held, description of
voting rights or other forms of control, management position or other
position held):
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PartE

9. Particulars of the beneficial owner's beneficial interest:
I am the beneficial owner of the trust in view that I am:

a trustee

a settlor

a protector

a beneficiary

a person who is empowered to (fo be selected only if you are not a
trustee, settlor, protector, beneficiary):

oooood

appoint or remove any of the trustees of the trust
direct the distribution of funds or assets of the trust
direct investment decisions of the trust

amend the trust deed

revoke the trust

others: (Specify means and mechanism through which ownership
or control is exercised, numerical value of interest held,
description of voting rights or other forms of control,
management position or other position held)

ooooono
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Part F
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10. Particulars

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
®
8
(h)

(@)
(b)
(©)
(d)
(e)
®
(8)

of nominees and nominators where the nominator is the

beneficial owner (if applicable):
The person(s) acting on my behalf as a nominee are as follows:

(i) Where the nominee is a natural person, his/her:

Name:

Residential Address:

Service Address:

Date of Birth:

Nationality:

National Identification Number or equivalent (if any):
Tax Identification Number or equivalent (if any):
Particulars and details of the interest held:

(i) Where the nominee is a legal person, its:

Name:

Registered Address:

Incorporation/Registration Number:

Date of Incorporation/Registration:

Jurisdiction of Incorporation/Registration:

Tax Identification Number or equivalent (if any):
Information and details of the interest held:
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Part G

11. Particulars of nominees and nominators where the nominator is not the

beneficial owner (if applicable):

Nominees Nominators
(Name of nominee 1) (Name of nominator 1)
(Name of nominee 2) (Name of nominator 2)

The details of the nominees and nominators mentioned above are as
follows:

(i)  Where a nominee is a natural person, his/her:
(a) Name:
(b) Residential Address:
(c) Service Address:
(d) Date of Birth:
(e) Nationality:
(f) National Identification Number or equivalent (if any):
(g) Tax Identification Number or equivalent (if any):
(h) Particulars and details of the interest held:

(i) Where a nominee is a legal person, its:

(a) Name:

(b) Registered Address:

(c) Incorporation/Registration Number:

(d) Date of Incorporation/Registration:

(e) Jurisdiction of Incorporation/Registration:

()  Tax Identification Number or equivalent (if any):
(g) Information and details of the interest held:

(iii) Where a nominator is a natural person, his/her:

(a) Name:

(b) Residential Address:
(c) Service Address:
(d) Date of Birth:

(e) Nationality:
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(iv) Where a nominator is a legal person, its:

(a) Name:

(b) Registered Address:

(¢) Incorporation/Registration Number:

(d) Date of Incorporation/Registration:

(e) Jurisdiction of Incorporation/Registration:

(f)  The identity (i.c. name, residential address, service address,
date of birth and nationality) of the beneficial owner of the
legal person:

I am cognizant that enforcement actions may be taken against me
pursuant to section 10 (7a) of the Beneficial Ownership Act, 2020, if it
is found that I provided false or misleading information in this
declaration.

(Signature)

(Full name of the beneficial owner)”

MADE this 27" day of April, 2023.

NAADIR HASSAN
MINISTER OF FINANCE,
NATIONAL PLANNING AND TRADE




